

London Borough of Hackney Children and Young People Scrutiny Commission Municipal Year 2018/19 Date of Meeting Thursday 29 September 2022 Minutes of the proceedings of the Children and Young People Scrutiny Commission held at Hackney Town Hall, Mare Street, London E8 1EA

Chair Councillor Sophie Conway

Councillors in Attendance Cllr Margaret Gordon (Vice-Chair), Cllr Alastair Binnie-Lubbock, Cllr Midnight Ross, Cllr Lynne Troughton and

Cllr Claudia Turbet-Delof

Apologies: Cllr Lee Laudat-Scott and Cllr Anya Sizer

Connected Virtually Salmah Kansara, Cllr Sheila Suso-Runge and Cllr

Caroline Selman.

Co-optees Richard Brown, Andy English and Jo Macleod

In Attendance

- Cllr Anntionette Bramble, Cabinet Member for Children, Education and Children's Social Care
- Cllr Caroline Woodley, Cabinet Member for Families, Early Years, Parks & Play
- Jacquie Burke, Group Director, Children and Education.
- Annie Gammon, Head of Hackney Learning Trust and Director of Education
- Paul Senior, Interim Director of Education
- Laura Bleaney, Head of Corporate Parenting
- Korinna Steele, Service Manager, Fostering, Permanency and Placements Service
- Anton Francic, Principal Secondary Advisor, School Improvement Secondary
- Joe Wilson, Head of SEND
- Lolita Sutherland, Hackney Foster Carers Council
- Liz Hughes, Hackney Foster Carers Council
- Symone Robins, Hackney Foster Carers Council
- Natasha Grant, Hackney Foster Carers Council

Meet recording <a href="https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=W0yNsBUiEkY">https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=W0yNsBUiEkY</a>

Officer Contact: Martin Bradford

**2** 020 8356 3315

## **Councillor Sophie Conway in the Chair**

The Chair welcomed all those attending both in person and on-line. The Chair noted that Ernell Watson had resigned from her role as co-opted member for Free Churches in July 2022 and thanked her for 7 years of service to the Commission. The Chair also noted that there were ongoing discussions with the Union of Orthodox Hebrew Congregations to ensure that there was community representation on the Commission since the departure of Michael Lobenstein.

It was also noted that Annie Gammon, the Director of Education was retiring and that this would be her last meeting. The Chair and Vice Chair expressed their thanks to Annie for her support not only to the work of this Commission but for her many years of service to local education services as a Headteacher and latterly as Director of Education of Hackney. The Vice Chair thanked the Director of Education for her work and positive engagement with the Commission over the years and for her work in ensuring that the borough's largest secondary school had remained a community maintained school.

# 1 Apologies for Absence

1.1 Apologies for absence were received from the following members of the Commission:

Cllr Anya Sizer

Cllr Suso Runge;

Cllr Laudat Scott;

Cllr Caroline Selman;

Diane Benjamin, Director of Children's Social Care.

1.2 To note a correction from minutes of the previous meeting of 11th July 2022, that Cllr Binnie Lubbock and Cllr Suso Runge attended virtually. This has been noted in the approved minutes of that meeting.

### 2 Urgent Items / Order of Business

2.1 There were no urgent items and the agenda was as had been published.

#### 3 Declarations of Interest

- 3.1 The following declarations were received by members of the Commission:
- Jo McLeod was a Governor at a primary school in Hackney and a parent of a child with SEND.

## 4 Recruitment and Retention of In-House Foster Carers (19.05)

- 4.1 The Commission completed a review of the recruitment and retention of foster carers in 2018 which contained 10 recommendations to the Council. The Commission has received a number of updates before this meeting, the last being in October 2019.
- 4.2 Having been approached by Hackney Foster Carers Council, the Commission agreed to revisit this review to reassess the Hackney Foster Carer offer and to ensure that there has been sustained progress in the recruitment and retention of in-house foster carers.
- 4.3 To support this session, the Commission undertook a local consultation with local in-house foster carers supported by Hackney Foster Carers Council. The Commission held a consultation evening on 31st August 2022 where members met 10

local foster carers. This event was supported by a survey conducted by the Commission for which 48 responses were received from foster carers.

4.4 The Commission would produce a report with recommendations based on the consultation focus group, the survey and the discussions that take place at this meeting. This will be submitted to Cabinet for approval.

### Corporate Parenting

- 4.5 The Corporate Parenting team (CPT) believes that the in-house foster care team remains the best option for children in care and is committed to recruiting and retaining foster carers. There have been challenges to the recruitment of foster carers due to national conditions (i.e. impact of Covid), which has been felt in Hackney and across North London boroughs. Despite this, the department has maintained a strong track record of recruitment of foster carers and has in excess of 170 fostering households in Hackney.
- 4.6 Supporting in-house foster carers does present a number of challenges including how increasing numbers of carers are supported. The CPT was always keen to develop the local support offer to carers including through developing links with national care bodies (e.g. Fostering Network) and by setting up additional support groups for carers (e.g. male carers group). The service is aware that it needs to develop its out of hours and emergency response support offer to carers which was challenging within a small team of social workers. There was also a good training and support offer for foster carers.
- 4.7 The team was supported by experienced managers who not only knew and understood how to support staff, but also had good connections with foster carers themselves and understood the issues that they faced. For example, local foster carers were interested in developing a trauma informed approach and were keen to work with service leaders in implementing this across the service.
- 4.8 Around 75% of all children are placed in foster care, of which 44% are with the in-house foster carer team. The CPT would like to increase the number of looked after children who are cared for by the in-house foster carer team. The matching service within the CPT were also working hard to make the most of the in-house foster carer team and to ensure that the right child was placed with the right foster carer. CPT have also been assessing how in-house foster carers can be used to support each other and other children who may be placed at a distance (outside of Hackney). The CPT was receptive to new ways of working or other developments which could improve support for in-house foster carers and welcomed this review.
- 4.9 In terms of the previous recommendations of the Commission from 2018, it had been difficult to achieve progress in relation to Council Tax exemption. There was now however a clear plan now for this to be rectified and it was hoped that an exemption for foster carers would be installed for the next financial year (2023/24) and a similar compensation scheme for those not resident within the borough.

### Questions from the Commission

- 4.10 An Increase in fostering households is recorded from 128 to 170. To what extent has this growth accounted by 'Connected Carers' who are mainly relatives or friends or named children? Has there been any growth in the mainstream fostering households?
  From 1st April 2022 there has been an increase of 14 in house foster carers and an increase in connected foster carers also.
- 4.11 Can further details be provided on the 'capacity restraints' which limit in house foster carer assessments through the in-house recruitment unit. Is this a staffing issue or budget restriction? What can be done to ensure that this key service is brought back in house?

- This was a resource issue and was being negotiated with finance colleagues as increased numbers of in-house foster carer recruits needed to be supported by a higher level of resource to support them (e.g. social work support, training etc.). The CPT would like to bring the recruitment and assessment team back in house so that this function can be better quality assured and is working with service leaders and finance to achieve this.
- The Group Director indicated that transformational work was starting across children's social care and education to ensure that an investment to save opportunity such as this was not missed.
- 4.12 In relation to recruitment of in-house foster carers, how accessible is information, advice and guidance on becoming an in-house foster carer in the community? Also how does the Hackney offer to in-house foster carers compare to Independent Fostering Agencies (IFA)?
- Although the council may pay an IFA £1,000 per week for a looked after child maybe only half of this would go to the foster carer themselves. The weekly cost of an in-house foster care placement is approximately ½ that of an IFA placement, though social work support would need to be factored into the in-house model costs.
- There were significant variations in the level of service offered through IFAs. There were undoubtedly services of high quality and support to foster carers though other IFA's offered a less consistent service. It was noted that many smaller IFA's had been taken over by larger IFA's which had led to some deterioration of service quality.
- The North London Consortium pools resources to support recruitment across a number of local authorities which is more cost effective than if this was performed by individual authorities.
- 4.13 Given that officers have said that the use of in-house foster carers is preferred in terms of quality and also the most cost effective approach to care of looked after children, what are the barriers to investing more in this service?
- In principle, senior managers and staff were all in agreement that this was the best approach, but quite simply, the pressures within the overall Corporate Parenting budget were so significant, that the current options for re-investment were limited.
- 4.14 It was noted that some authorities offer retainers to carers (whilst they are not supporting a placement) and provide financial assistance during the assessment process or where allegations are being investigated, all of which are not provided in Hackney. Is there a consistency of support and financial help across local authorities participating in the North London Fostering Consortium?
- Although authorities do not offer the exact same package, participating authorities do meet and benchmark financial support to ensure that this is consistent and does not encourage an inter-borough flow of foster carers. The CPT were keen to understand what in-house foster carers needed in terms of additional support and would look at this in the context of what was provided elsewhere. It was important that the local offer across authorities was consistent to prevent competition for foster carers between partner boroughs.
- 4.15 Are mainstream foster carers who leave the in-house service routinely offered an exit interview? Is this independent and are there clear procedures to derive learning from these interviews? What is the main reason that mainstream fostering households leave the service?
- Exit interviews are offered to all foster carer leavers. The reasons for leaving can be quite varied with some leaving as they have come to the end of their fostering career. Recently, there have been a number of foster carers who have left who have cited that they have not felt fully supported in their role as their reason for leaving (e.g. high turnover of social worker support).
- There are a number of common scenarios for carers to leave, these being when the child that they are caring for leaves care, or when a foster carer is relatively new (within the first year) and they have found the experience does not match up to what was

expected. It was noted that all of the children have some form of trauma and will provide some challenge to foster carers. The CPT is keen to learn from these exit interviews and to develop the service as necessary.

- It should be noted that there was a national crisis in the recruitment of social workers and there had been a high turnover of social workers.
- 4.16 Foster carers consulted in the lead up to this review suggested that assessment processes were excessively long and personally very challenging. When did the Council last review its recruitment and assessment procedures? What informs the assessment process and how much flexibility does LA have? Is the Council assured that current assessment systems are culturally sensitive? Is there a process for a more gradual entry into the in-house fostering support?
- It was noted that the assessment process for in-house foster carers was 8 months duration which included a wide ranging package of training, reflection and learning. It is important that foster carers have a clear understanding what happens during the assessment and what to expect as a foster carer. It was acknowledged that this process is intrusive, but was necessary as carers would be looking after the most vulnerable children and the CPT must ensure that they have the right skills to be able to do this. The assessment process is regularly reviewed.
- In house assessment is preferred as this enables the service to get to know the prospective foster carer better and how best their needs can be supported.

There have been times when the assessment periods have been very long as the service has been reliant on agency social workers to undertake this function. Additional checks and balances have been put in place to prevent this, but it should be acknowledged that it was not possible to cut corners in this process as the service must have full confidence in its team of foster carers.

- 4.17 There are many related professionals who work with children and have relevant experience and understanding which can be brought to fostering. Are these professionals being included within fostering recruitment campaigns? Also, in relation to connected carers, were opportunities to foster with friends of the family being fully explored?
- Connected carers can offer a positive and stable foster carer placement which can also help children to maintain contact with local support networks. Family Group Conferences help to identify possible connected carers with whom children can be placed when they may need to be removed from their parent or carer. This process is however reliant on the information provided by the family and CPT would need their consent to contact them. It was also noted that sometimes children themselves suggest potential connected carers. It should be noted that connected carers can sometimes present very complex relationships for the family and wider network of family and friends to maintain. There is further work that can be undertaken in the community to increase general awareness of the fostering options such as connected carers, especially as some of these carers can progress to become mainstream foster carers.
- 4.18 What are the benefits of a child being placed with an in-house foster carer rather than with a foster carer working for an IFA?
- Within the CPT there is better knowledge of the carer and of the children involved which can lead to placement that better suit the needs of children in care. It was acknowledged that some IFA do provide excellent therapeutic support and the CPT was keen to learn from these where this was identified.
- 4.19 There was a perception among foster carers that their knowledge and understanding of what it is like to be a foster carer in Hackney or their experience of looking after children in Hackney is not valued or utilised by the service. To what degree are foster carers involved in training, assessment and the placement of children with respective carers? Can carers views be integrated into practice better?
- Foster carers are involved in recruitment as it is important for new carers to hear the voice of existing carers and learn about their experiences. The service also offers

'buddying' support for new social workers which enables established foster carers to be involved in their development.

- 4.20 Understanding the limitations of social work support available to foster carers, what alternative support is available in relation to therapeutic support, clinical supervision and individual therapy?
- There is a clinical service in Hackney and the CPT were assessing how this offer can be extended to in house foster carers. It was also noted that there was a therapeutic support group for carers which offered a drop-in service. This development had been well received and a high take up had been recorded.
- 4.21 Whilst rates of remuneration were connected to levels of experience, the placement of children with most complex needs did not always tally with experience. Therefore there were circumstances in which children with higher needs were sometimes placed with relatively inexperienced (and lower remunerated) foster carers. Is this being addressed?
- There is now a full-time matching officer to ensure that needs of the child are matched with the skills, abilities and experience of the foster carer. There was always the possibility that new or emerging needs of the child would come to light after the child has been placed with a foster carer which may be challenging for the foster carer concerned. Matching is important as all the children will have some degree of trauma. It should be noted that the level of qualification of the foster carer is linked to training and development and not the needs of individual children.
- It was noted that there is a fostering social worker in the out of hours service who can match children coming into care with the in-house fostering team where appropriate.
- 4.22 What level of scrutiny takes place in relation to private fostering to ensure that arrangements are appropriate to the needs of the child?
- Private fostering assessments are subject to a rigorous statutory assessment. In Hackney this is undertaken by the No Recourse to Public Funds Team rather than within the fostering service. If there were safeguarding concerns that emerged in this assessment these would be dealt with by the safeguarding team. It was important to recognise the vulnerability of a child living away from their parents and the safeguards that need to be put in place.
- 4.23 Foster Carers noted how disruptive and challenging allegations by young people they care for can be, and how disempowered they feel in these investigations (e.g. last to be consulted, lack of information). When did the Council last review its procedures for investigating "allegations". Why is there not a "tier" of seriousness that would avoid the unnecessary disruption of a placement and a presumption of innocence until proven guilty particularly for less serious allegations? The previous review recommended that foster cares have access to independent advice and guidance through allegations, can you update the Commission where this is?
- There is an allegations policy which has recently been updated to ensure that these are dealt with fairly and consistently. Allegations are related to allegation of child abuse not in the failure to deliver standards of care and therefore have to be investigated under child safeguarding procedures which can be very lengthy, especially when other parties may be involved (e.g. police). The financial policy indicates that payments to foster carers will continue for a set amount of time after an allegation has been made.
- 4.24 Within the survey there were very favourable reports of the additional support that the MockingBird hub and constellation support system provided to foster carers in the survey. To date there are 3 Mockingbird sites, two of which are in the process of being embedded. The Commission notes the ambition for all foster carers to be included within a Mockingbird Constellation, but can you set out the challenges and financial implications of increasing this provision. What is the planned time frame for this ambition?

- There are 3 Mockingbird projects in, 1 in Hackney, 1 in Barnet and 1 in Essex. The number of projects is growing year by year and it is hoped that all foster carers will benefit from the additional peer support and experience that these provide. The hub carer is central to the operation of the Mockingbird as they can offer experienced support as well as respite care for other carers and looked after children (therefore this hub carer needs to have additional rooms to be able to undertake this support). CPT regularly updates all foster carers on the work of Mockingbird constellations and how these extend support to carers and looked after children.
- Housing is a barrier to the Mockingbird model, as the hub carer needs to have two spare rooms to adopt this central role. This can be a significant barrier to the rollout of additional constellations. There was flexibility around this space, but it was acknowledged that this was a significant commitment for hub carers.
- 4.25 If foster carers could change one thing to improve recruitment and retention what would this be?
- Emergency Placement of children needs to be assessed in greater detail to ensure that there is full follow up to check that this is the best arrangement for the child and the foster carer. Too often these are placed in IFA or specialist accommodation which may be far away from home and still not meet all their needs. In house foster carers were not being utilised enough, and their skills and experience could be developed further because in an emergency children were being placed elsewhere.
- The relationship between foster carers and social workers needed to be examined, in particular in the way that they advocate and represent the views of foster carers. IFA social workers were not afraid to challenge and advocate for their foster carers, whereas in-house foster carers were part of the Hackney system and not able to challenge other progression or effectively represent them in the local system.
- Additional support was the thing that needed to change most for foster carers.

## **Hackney Foster Carers Council**

- 4.26 Representatives from Hackney Foster Carers Council presented to the Commission and highlighted the following key issues:
- Mockingbird is a very supportive model which is very welcomed by foster carers, yet only a small fraction of foster carers currently benefit (30 out of 170). There were waiting lists to join which indicated the level of needs among foster carers.
- Foster carers look after children because they care and have a commitment to improving the lives of children. There were however, many challenges for foster carers in looking after such children.
- Many children coming into care were traumatised and needed high levels of support which was challenging to foster carers. Children were finding it difficult to access therapeutic or clinical support or mental health support which was challenging. Foster carers also needed therapeutic support to help them manage foster placements but such opportunities were relatively limited.
- In terms of out of hours services, there is not the level of support available which is needed to support foster carers. In particular, there was rarely an opportunity to talk to a social worker in any detail about a crisis that may be happening at the time for foster carers
- There is a chronic shortage of social workers. This made it very difficult for foster carers to form relationships with social workers and get the advice, help and support that they needed.
- Too often, the records of looked after children appeared not to have been updated which was frustrating to foster carers, as it was very difficult to progress and support children effectively.
- In terms of recruitment, potential foster carers need to know the whole picture of what it is like to be a foster carer and to hear about their experiences. At the moment, it felt like a revolving door with as many leaving as there were joining. Exit interviews were not rigorous enough to learn more about the experiences of why foster carers were leaving.

- There was no difference in the way that foster carers were treated in relation to an allegation or a standard of care issue, and that for some carers, payments had immediately stopped once investigations were launched.
- HFCC was not aware of the outcomes of the review completed in 2018 and would like to be further involved in the outcomes of this update and monitoring.

Concerns around complaints and allegations were widespread and potentially devastating for carers. Foster carers working for an IFA found this process much easier as they had the agency to represent and advocate for them, which in-house foster carers did not have.

-In-house foster carers felt that they could be more involved in service provision and there were other models which the service may need to look at to inform this such as adult social care or other patient involvement approaches.

Step-up and step-down approaches have not been fully applied and that there was a need for greater dialogue between foster carers and social workers when this could take place.

4.27 The Chair noted that this conversation would continue and that the Commission would draw up a report with recommendations to the Cabinet member. This would draw on evidence presented in this meeting, the focus group and the survey.

## 5 Hackney GCSE and A Level Results 2022 (20.20)

5.1 The Commission requested a short verbal update on the GCSE and A Level results of Hackney students from 2022. As this is the first year that students have sat public examinations since 2019 this was an opportunity for the Commission to reflect on how well students have performed and to ensure that there has been appropriate support mechanisms in place for students.

## Hackney Education

- 5.2 Public examinations resumed in 2022, as these were replaced by teacher assessments in both 2020 and 2021 due to the pandemic. Hackney schools and students have performed comparatively better than national averages for both GCSE and A Level results. Full data would not be available until February of next year, and today's summary represented an on the day snapshot of performance.
- 5.3 Key areas to highlight from local performance included:

At GCSE level:

75% of students achieved a standard pass in mathematics and English which is substantially higher than results in 2019 (69%);

57% of students achieved a strong pass in mathematics and English which is substantially higher than results in 2019 (48%);

At A Level:

32% of students gained an A\* and an A;

59% of students gained an A\* and a B;

81% of students gained an A\* and a C.

The range of courses at post 16 has also diversified with some schools offering up to 27 different pathways.

5.4 All secondary schools are involved in WAMHS, therefore every school has a wholesale school framework to support emotional wellbeing and support for students. Some schools also provide access to counsellors and mentors as additional to pastoral support. A number of case studies were used to illustrate how additional support was provided to vulnerable students to achieve. Schools have become trauma aware, trauma informed and practitioners in supporting children.

## Questions from the Commission

5.5 The Commission is aware of the profound impact that Covid and school closures has had on a number of pupils and in this context, percentages reveal one aspect of

performance. Is there any additional data on the numbers of children which have taken exams or the number of children who have dropped out of exams?

- 5.6 As there is no resource for children to need to be assisted for exam retakes?
- More secondary settings are now offering resit exams at post 16. This was less of an issue for post 18, as many students who were not going to achieve the required standard would be guided to different examination paths at the end of year 12. It was noted that the failure rate for children taking the same exam was very high which meant that this was not a viable option for schools to support. It was important to intervene before the end of year 12 so that additional measures could be put in place.
- 5.7 What are the future plans for 'grade downs' as schools will be graded to 2019 levels?
- The aim of the assessment bodies is to gradually return to 2019 standards which will mean a further adjustment in 2023.
- 5.8 Would it be possible to have a breakdown of BTech results for the later paper in February 2023?
- Data was collected differently for BTech, but additional data can be provided with the full paper on attainment is provided in February 2023.
- 5.9 The Chair thanked officers for this summary and overview and requested that when the more detailed item ion attainment is discussed in February 2023 it can also look at:
- -Attainment gap between disadvantaged students;
- -Attainment of children in Alternative Provision (including the PRU);
- -BTech data.

# 6 Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCP) - Demography (20.40)

6.1 Following the Commission's work programme discussions in June and July, it was evident that SEND services would figure prominently within Commissions work programme for 2022/23 with a number of key developments in the service:

Changes in relation to the SEND Green Paper:

The emerging local SEND Strategy and Action Plan, SEND restructure and Better Value review.

6.2 To inform possible scrutiny of the above, and in recognition of the wider context of increasing demands for the SEND services, the Commission requested a short report from Hackney Education setting out the current demographic profile of children with and EHCP and new EHCP applications. This request also relates to ongoing disproportionality work undertaken by the Commission which suggests that the identification of additional needs of some groups of children and young people remain unidentified until much later in their education.

#### Hackney Education

- 6.3 It was widely recognised that demand for EHCPs was growing with around 400 EHCPS being approved each year. This was creating significant pressures on local specialists and mainstream schools, and had resulted in rising numbers of children being supported in non-maintained settings outside of the borough. This issue was being addressed by the School Estates Strategy which was not only aiming to increase local specialist provision but was also seeking to increase the number of children supported in local schools through Additional Resource Provisions (ARP).
- Other highlights from the report included:
- -Hackney had the 12th highest rate of EHCPs in England and 1 in 20 children had an EHCP.

- -Higher proportion of children with SEND in Hackney are supported in mainstream schools compared to other boroughs.
- -Hackney is rejecting a higher number of EHCP requests than other boroughs.

### Questions from the Commission

- 6.5 At page 50, the report indicates that 153 initial requests for an EHCP were refused which was 30% of all requests. Is there any data on the age and ethnicity of those requests for an EHCP which were refused? What proportion of these were challenged by parents and how many of these challenges were successful? Is there any tracking of students which were rejected?
- There were around 50 appeals last year, additional data was not available at the meeting, but could be supplied at a later date.
- In relation to graduated response, a new system has been put in place to help track pupils. Each school will now hold a multidisciplinary team meeting on a termly basis to review all pupils with a vulnerability. This team will assess progress and whether a further review of needs is required.
- 6.6 The EHCP review process should be that schools should conduct an annual review which is submitted to the LA who then reassess the EHCP as necessary, which the school will then deliver upon. Locally, the last part of this process is not happening as the LA is not updating the EHCP. When is progress going to be made in this area?
- This was covered in the SEND review which was recently completed. Many LA's have been struggling with the annual review duty due to the demand in the system; there are currently 3,000 children with an EHCP which require annual review and until the review, there was insufficient resource (casework staff were holding between 300-350 cases per worker). After the restructure caseloads had been reduced to around 120-150 per worker which will enable them to implement reviews. It was also acknowledged that paperwork was excessive (8-9 pages) and that it was hoped to reduce this to around 2-3 pages in the future. More needed to be done but work was in progress.
- It was noted that performance had improved in recent weeks in ensuring that EHCPs are completed in the 20 week statutory timeframe. It was also noted that there were no cases which were with the Ombudsman which would suggest that the council was discharging its statutory duties.
- 6.7 At page 50 the report indicates that 153 initial requests for an EHCP were refused is there any correlation between those requests being rejected and the presence of mental health and emotional health issues?
- Refusal could be for a number of reasons, including a lack of information provided by the school or parents, though HE will often pursue to get the correct or missing information. Sometimes the school has not sought the views of external agencies such as SLT. Refused requests can also be resubmitted.
- 6.8 As part of the graduated response and the whole systems approach to help reduce needs, is the universal offer to schools going to be increased as this will help support the graduated response (e.g. access to Educational Psychology assessments). In terms of the graduated response and more support provided to pupils within maintained school settings, there is a need for additional transparency and accountability of school actions. How will this be supported by HE?
- HE have set up a new offer for schools. Previously schools were funded and bought in educational psychology and specialist teachers. For approximately £3,000 per year, primary schools get access to Educational Psychology, SLT and Specialist Teachers as well as a universal training offer. HE has partnered with Autism Education Trust to roll out training to every school in Hackney.

The Green Paper on SEND was currently progressing through parliament which would bring other changes to the local support systems for children with SEND.

6.9 The Commission noted that it was still coming across cases of children whose SEND or additional needs were being missed and were increasingly benign seen in

alternative provision or in the pupil referral unit. Is there any data benign collected in this respect?

- From January 2023 data will be collected and submitted at a 'person level' which means that the authority will be in a better position to look at this issue in a more holistic way.
- It was noted that the SEND Strategy will go to Cabinet in October 2022 and the Action Plan needs to be endorsed by the partnership before it can be presented at scrutiny.
- 6.10 The Chair thanked officers for attending the meeting and responding to questions from the Commission.

## 7 Work Programme 2022/23 (21.20)

7.1 The main updates for the Commission included:

School exclusions and school moves would be presented at the next meeting in October 2022:

Also at the next meeting in October, the Commission would assess schools' role in addressing food poverty and insecurity

Access to CAMHS would be included within the April agenda and would involve site visits to local providers and young people's groups.

7.2 The Commission noted and agreed on the work programme.

## 8 Minutes of the Previous Meeting

8.1 The minutes of 13th July were noted and agreed.

## 9 Any Other Business

9.1 The date of the next meeting was 31st October 2022. There were no other items of business.

#### Meeting closed at 9.50pm

Duration of the meeting: Times Not Specified